Greek Week 2025 Handbook

Table of Contents

WHY GREEK WEEK:	2
Alcohol and Substance Policy 2025	
Alcohol, Conduct, and Substance Violation Consequences	
Sportsmanship & Inclusion Policy	5
Greek Week Participants 2025	
Greek Week Schedule Overview	8
Greek Week Scoring System	9
Greek Week Service & Philo	11
Greek Week Event Breakdown	12
Greek Week Team	17

WHY GREEK WEEK:

Building connections with the Panhellenic Council, Interfraternity Council, Multicultural Greek Council, and National Pan-Hellenic Council at Cal State Fullerton is about service, friendships, teamwork, and community. Greek Week has been a tradition at Cal State Fullerton for over 10 years. It allows the members of the Fraternity & Sorority community to come together to raise awareness for the Children's Center, The ASI Food Pantry, and Tuffy's Basic Needs. During Greek Week, all chapters must compete with enthusiasm, integrity, respect, and pride. Active participation in Greek Week is voluntary but extremely recommended. Those outside the Fraternity & Sorority community are encouraged to attend the planned events and competitions, but competition is limited to Fraternity & Sorority recognized members only. All Rules are subject to interpretation by the Greek Week team, with the final say designated to the FSL staff.

Note: Greek Week is a student-led initiative. Please remember you represent the Fraternity & Sorority community at Cal State Fullerton. We expect to see our community values in action at all times. The Greek Week team wishes you a week full of fun and friendly competition. Best of luck!

Alcohol and Substance Policy 2025

Note: This policy will apply to all members participating OR attending CSUF's 2025 Greek Week.

- 1. All chapters with facilities are subject to their current alcohol policy in addition to the rules of Cal State Fullerton, the laws of the city of Fullerton, and the state and the federal government-- i.e. organizations shall have no alcohol on their premises at any time, organizations will conduct their behavior in alignment with their assignment of being alcohol-prohibited, alcohol-restricted, or alcohol-permitted.
- 2. Chapters without a facility are subject to the rules and regulations of their local chapter bylaws, national organization policies, Cal State Fullerton, state and federal law, and the premises on which they are at any given time.
- 3. All Greek Week events are alcohol, drug, and vape free. It must not be brought to a Greek Week event at any time.
- 4. If any individual is found during or after Greek Week to have knowingly contributed to the concealment of an unregistered event or underage alcohol consumption or distribution, it will be encouraged that they are charged through the appropriate channel(s)- Chapter Standards Boards and the Office of Student Conduct.
- 5. Regardless of age, if an individual is suspected to be intoxicated or under the influence of drugs at a Greek Week event, any member of Greek Week Team may ask that individual to leave.
- 6. Regardless of age, if an individual is suspected to have alcohol, or be responsible for the intoxication of underage students at a Greek Week event any member of Greek Week Team member may notify FSL staff. Depending on the severity FSL staff will call the police if the situation renders for.

Alcohol, Conduct, and Substance Violation Consequences

- 1. A team's first alcohol, conduct, or substance (drugs and vapes) violation will result in a **deduction of 50 points** from the individual's team's current total Greek Week point accumulation. A team's second violation will result in a **deduction of 150 points** from the individual's team's current total Greek Week point accumulation. A team's third alcohol or substance violation will result in the individual's team being **disqualified** from the Greek Week competition. Additionally, there will be a meeting held with the Greek Week Team and FSL Staff.
- 2. If a Greek Week delegate or chapter member is removed from your team for failing to notify a student of breaking this policy or a chapter member has been removed for breaking the alcohol and substance policy the team will **lose points** for that member's participation scoring section.
- 3. If any team is issued a third alcohol violation for any reason listed in this policy, the FSL staff will consider **disqualification** for the entire respective team for Greek Week 2025 next spring.

Sportsmanship & Inclusion Policy

- 1. This policy will apply to all members attending & participating in Greek Week.
- 2. Greek Week Teams are responsible for the conduct and actions of their members.
- 3. Unsportsmanlike conduct will not be tolerated at any time before, during, or after Greek Week (including both spectators and participants).
- 4. Unsportsmanlike conduct may refer to, offensive slurs and/or language, taunting, assault, or any other conduct deemed inappropriate by the Greek Week Team or FSL staff.
- 5. Equal inclusion of participating chapters is required (i.e. engagement and decision-making for the team, representation and participation in events, etc.).
- 6. Should a chapter wish not to participate in a particular event(s) with their respective team, documentation must be submitted (emailed to ealarid@fullerton.edu) 24 hours before the event begins by the particular chapter wishing not to participate. Submitting this documentation will prevent their respective team from violating the Inclusion Policy or potential point deductions in the particular Greek Week event (e.g. tournaments).
- 7. Should a member, group, or chapter feel they are not being equally included in the team, these particular individuals should report this to the Greek Week Team or FSL Staff. Approaching FSL Staff or Greek Week Team will remain confidential.
- 8. FSL Staff and Greek Week team will be monitoring sportsmanship and inclusivity at all Greek Week events including leading up to Greek Week (including content posted on social media).
- 9. Should a Sportsmanship or Inclusion Policy violation occur, a Greek Week Delegate may submit a report to the Misconduct Form (provided by the Greek Week Team), and the Greek Week Team will assess any submissions at the end of each day and will take appropriate, if needed.
- 10. Should a Sportsmanship or Inclusion Policy violation occur, the respective Greek Week delegates will be notified and deeming on severity a conference with the Greek Week Team and FSL Staff will occur at the earliest convenience.

- 11. If a serious violation occurs (in person and/or via social media), the Greek Week Team reserves the right to **deduct 100 points** from the current total Greek Week point accumulation of the respective team (discretion of the Greek Week team and FSL Staff).
- 12. If any physical altercations occur, the team(s) will be immediately **disqualified**. The team(s) may also be reconsidered to participate in Greek Week 2026.
- 13. Any unsportsmanlike conduct that is in violation of university policy will be reported to the appropriate university departments which will conduct their own investigations, including but not limited to: Title IX, Equal Opportunity, and the Office of Student Conduct.
- 14. Three violations will result in the entire team being **disqualified** and a discussion of your chapter's attendance for Greek Week 2026.
- 15. Each violation will be documented and shared with the FSL Staff and appropriate university officials.
- 16. **Examples** of violations of this policy would include inappropriate "themes", offensive language in group chats, behavior that excludes any chapter from the team, etc.

Greek Week Participants 2025

Due to the varying sizes of chapters participating, certain chapters may be paired together for specific events if they do not meet the minimum participant requirement. In this case, ALL CHAPTERS will still be awarded points individually (even if they are participating with another chapter for the specific event).

Alpha Chi Omega

Alpha Delta Pi

Alpha Kappa Alpha

Alpha Psi Lambda

Delta Zeta

Gamma Phi Beta

Lambda Theta Phi

Phi Delta Theta

Phi Kappa Tau

Sigma Alpha Epsilon

Sigma Delta Alpha

Sigma Gamma Rho

Sigma Kappa

Sigma Lambda Beta

Sigma Nu

Sigma Theta Psi

Tau Theta Pi

Zeta Tau Alpha

Greek Week Schedule Overview

DAY	TIME	EVENT	LOCATION
Monday (4/14)	10:00 am-2:00 pm	Tabling for Coin Wars/Donation Boxes - Basic Needs + PHC Presidents Dunk Tank Philanthropy	Titan Walk
	4:00 pm - 5:00 pm	Children's Center Volunteering Event	Children's Center
<u>Tuesday</u> (4/15)	10:00 am-2:00 pm	Tabling for Coin Wars/Donation Boxes - ASI Food Pantry/Gender Affirming Closet	Titan Walk
Wednesday (4/16)	6:00 pm-9:00 pm	Dodgeball	Tuffy Lawn
	11am-9pm	Raising Canes Dine-Out Night	201 W Orangethorpe Ave, Fullerton, CA 92832
Thursday	6:00pm-7:00pm	Family Feud/Mini Games	Titan Gym
(4/17)	7:00pm-10:00pm	Boiler Room	Titan Gym
<u>Friday</u> (4/18)	10:00 am-1:00 pm	Chants/LipSync Performances + Awards	Titan Gym
	6:00pm	Angels Night	Details will be added soon!

Greek Week Scoring System

Participation

Teams will be graded on overall participation. These must also be posted on social media.

100 points = few members attended and participated in theme, had little to no spirit during event

200 points = half of the Team attended and participated in theme, had good spirit to cheer during events

300 points = majority of all members attended and participated in the theme, cheered during all events for themselves + others. Showed good sportsmanship and had good spirit gear

Children's Center Event

70 points = participation (shift 1)70 points = participation (shift 2)

Dodgeball

75 points = participation
100 points = received third placed
125 points = received second place
150 points = received first place

Family Feud

50 points = participation
75 points = received third place
100 points = received second place
125 points = received first place

Mini Games

15 points = participation 50 points = per game won

Chants

100 points = participation
150 points = for third place
200 points = for second place
250 points = for first place

Tabling

50 points = participation
75 points = received third place
100 points = received second place
125 points = received first place

Social Media

75 points = received third place
100 points = received second place
125 points = received first place

Fundraising (coin wars, donation boxes, donation link, and dine-out night)

100 points = participation
300 points = third place
350 points = second place
400 points = first place

Greek Week Service & Philo

In an effort to eliminate advantages/disadvantages, based on competing chapter sizes and donation statistics from Greek Week 2024, PHC chapters will be competing individually and IFC + MGC chapters will be competing cumulatively. (Each chapter will still be awarded points individually.)

For example: If IFC + MGC cumulatively raises 1000 points worth of donation items, then each chapter in IFC and MGC will be awarded 1000 points, individually. If a PHC chapter raised 1000 points worth of donation items, then that PHC chapter will be awarded those 1000 points.

Donation Link

- A donation link will be distributed during Greek Week for the community to donate directly to the Children's Center
- In the link, there will be a section to indicate chapter affiliation
- DONATION LINK: https://fullerton.scalefunder.com/cfund/g/greekweek
- FOR EVERY \$3 DONATED, 1 POINT WILL BE AWARDED

Coin Wars:

- Each team will have their own table (4-8 people recommended per table).
- At each table, you will have a Mason Jar
- The Mason Jars are per competing chapter
- Mason Jars will be distributed at the beginning of the day by the Greek Week Team. The Greek Week Team will total them, and should be turned in as soon as tabling ends.
- We will announce each winner through the council's Instagram accounts.
- No negative points will be given.
- FOR EVERY \$3 DONATED, 1 POINT WILL BE AWARDED

Tabling:

• The Greek Week Team will have a dedicated tabling during tabling to record the attendance of team members in attendance each day of tabling.

- Chapters are allowed to bring one set of standing letters, however, they may not block another chapter's table.
- Chapters are encouraged to decorate their tables according to their theme.
- POINTS WILL BE AWARDED BASED ON THE PERCENTAGE OF TEAM SIZE (This will be calculated via a check-in form provided at the FSL table, where all participating members must check in, in order for their attendance to be counted towards their chapter's participation.)

Donation Boxes

ALL ITEMS ARE WORTH 1 POINT

All donations should be dropped off at the FSL table and ALL items MUST be counted BEFORE turning them in.

Basic Needs Service (Monday)

• List of items (and requirements) to donate: NO TRAVEL SIZED ITEMS

Shampoo/conditioner (12oz+)	Body wash/bar soap	
Shaving cream (5oz+)	Razors (disposable is accepted, and must be packaged.)	
Hair brushes/combs	Toothpaste (2oz+)	
Washcloths/loofahs	Toothbrushes (must be packaged)	
Deodorant (loz+)	Mouth wash (12oz+)	
Menstrual Products (pack of 6+)	Dental floss	

Gender Affirming Closet (Tuesday)

EACH CHAPTER MAY DONATE UP TO 200 ITEMS FOR THIS DONATION BOX! (Any additional items may be donated on behalf of another chapter who has not yet reached their limit)

- List of items to donate and guidelines:
 - Shirts, button-ups, blouses, pants, shorts, jackets, sweaters, leisure wear, etc.
 - No children's clothing sizes will be accepted; larger sizes such as large, extra large, and double extra large are needed
 - Shoes are accepted, adult sizes only
 - No used underwear bottoms will be accepted, new packages of underwear bottoms or socks only;
 - Items must be GENTLY USED and cleaned before drop off

The ASI Food Pantry (Tuesday)

- All donations should be dropped off at the FSL table.
- List of items to donate and guidelines: **EXPIRED PRODUCTS WILL RESULT**IN A LOSS OF 5 POINTS PER ITEM.
 - Canned Soup, Canned Vegetables, Canned Fruit, Tomato Sauce, Canned Meat (Chicken or Tuna)
 - o Cereal, Crackers, Peanut Butter, Jelly, Granola, Rolled Oats/Oatmeal,
 - Rice, Pasta, Ramen Noodles, Vegetarian/Vegan Food Alternatives, Mac and Cheese, Seasonings/Spices
 - o Reusable Plastic bags or cloth grocery bags
 - Please ensure that donated bags are in good condition, have handles, and show appropriate words or imagery

Philanthropy Dine-Out Night

Raising Canes

• CSUF FSL will host a Raising Canes Dine Out Night, with all proceeds going to the CSUF Children's Center

- Receipts/proof of purchase must be submitted via google form with chapter affiliation noted.
- Dates: Wednesday, April 16th
- EACH ENTREE PURCHASED IS WORTH 4 POINTS (kids meals, sides, and drinks will not count)
- Delegates may access the Dine Out Night flyer and google form on the links doc that the Greek Week Team shared with them.

Greek Week Event Breakdown

Panhellenic Dunk Tank

Panhellenic will be hosting their philanthropy event during tabling, and funds raised (specifically for the dunk tank) will be donated to a separate Panhellenic philanthropic cause, however, ALL Greek Week participants are encouraged to participate!

- Panhellenic Chapter Presidents will have set time slots for the dunk tank, and everyone is encouraged to participate by attempting to dunk a President!
- For every "try" purchased, that respective chapter throwing will earn the following points:
 - \circ \$3 = 1 try = 1 points
 - \circ \$5 = 3 tries = 3 points
 - \circ \$20 = automatic dunk = 10 points

Children's Center Craft Fair

- The Children's Center will be hosting a sports themed event.
- One participant from each chapter should attend each shift (the same participant may attend both shifts if desired, or it can be a different member per shift)
 - o Shift 1: 4:00 pm 4:30 pm
 - o Shift 2: 4:30 pm 5:00 pm
- The event will consist of multiple stations, and participants will get to hang out with the children!
- POINTS WILL BE AWARDED FOR ATTENDANCE (see scoring page)

Dodgeball

Dodgeball Rules are adapted from UGC 8 player minimum with subs allowed

Two games going at once (sororities on one field & fraternities on another)

Games will be conducted in bracket style (order will be released to the delegates once finalized)

Dodgeball Rules:

- 1. **Starting Positions:** All players start behind their respective end lines. Dodgeballs are placed on the center line.
- 2. **Game Start:** The game begins with a whistle or verbal command. At the start of the game, players may rush to the center line to retrieve dodgeballs.
- 3. **Throwing:** Players can only throw dodgeballs from their side of the court. Crossing the center line to throw is a fault, and will result in that player being eliminated. Players can hold multiple dodgeballs at once.
- 4. **Eliminations:** A player is "out" if a dodgeball thrown by an opposing player hits them directly and they do *not* catch the ball. The ball must hit them above the knees to count. HEADSHOTS WILL RESULT IN THE ELIMINATION OF THE INDIVIDUAL WHO THREW THE DODGEBALL.
- 5. **Catching:** If a player catches a dodgeball thrown by an opponent, the *thrower* is out. The caught ball can then be used by the catcher's team.
- 6. **Blocking:** Players can use a dodgeball to block an incoming dodgeball. If the block is unsuccessful, normal "hit" rules apply.
- 7. Out of Bounds: If a player steps out of bounds, they are out.
- 8. **Winning the Game:** The game continues until one team has eliminated all players from the opposing team. That team will then proceed to the next round, until there is an over-all champion.
- **9. Subs:** Subs are allowed, however, they may not replace a player that has already been eliminated.

Family Feud

- Each team participating will be a "family" in the game, each team is asked to provide 4 participants
- Playing the Main Game
 - The main game starts off with one family member from each team coming to the podium and facing off on the first question
 - The contestant who buzzes in first gets to provide the first answer
 - If that answer is the No. 1 survey response, his or her family gets control of the question.
 - If not, the opposing contestant gets to try and provide a higher-ranking response to earn control for his or her family.
 - The team who wins control of the question then provides more responses, one at a time.
 - They are not permitted to consult with one another during this part of the game. If a given answer is not one of the most popular, the family gets a strike.
 - If the team can guess all of the most popular answers on the board before getting three strikes, they win the round.
 - If a team ends up with three strikes, control of the round goes to the
 opposing family. That team then has one chance to come up with one of the
 remaining responses on the board to win the round if they fail, the other
 team gets the points.
 - For Greek Week purposes, three main rounds are played in each game.
 - At the end of the three rounds, scores will be compiled and totaled for awards at the end.

Point Values

• The point values assigned to each answer come from the number of people who responded with that answer in the survey. Only the most popular answers make it to the game board, so the points don't always add up to 100.

Mini Games

In between rounds of Family Feud, the Greek Week Team will have the Greek Week Delegates from pre-selected chapters pick a member from their chapter to compete in a mini game.

The competing order of chapters will be at random, and will be disclosed to the Greek Week Delegates once finalized.

Balloon Game

- Each player will be given a balloon.
- When signaled to being, each player must hold their balloon with one hand.
- The player who is able to hold onto their balloon the longest, without it hitting the floor wins.
- Players may not switch hands.
- Players may not tamper with their opponents balloon in anyway (ex: blowing their balloon).

Chants/LipSync Performances

Chapters may choose to perform a chant/salute/stroll or lip sync performance. All criteria will be scored the same. A rubric will be given to each judge (FSL Advisors).

- All teams will have a minimum of two minutes and a maximum of five minutes for their chants.
- Chants must incorporate:
 - Incorporation of assigned theme (either visually or audibly)
 - Incorporation of chapter's name may be mentioned, but only in good sportsmanship. (Use of poor sportsmanship will result in a loss of points)
 - o Profanity (visually and audibly) should not be used at all in the chant
 - Chapters/Teams may use audio/music to accompany chants/lipsync performance (as long as the audio/music is sent to the Greek Week Team at least 24 hours in advance)

- Costumes/Props are allowed and encouraged (ex: posters, noisemakers)
- No glitter, powder, or confetti is allowed
- Any trash/props left behind after a chapters/teams chant will result in a rubric score deduction.
- No speakers/music is allowed from the performing chapter, however, the Greek Week Team will provide a speaker and will play the audio file sent to them on behalf of the chapter performing. ALL AUDIO FILES MUST BE SENT AT LEAST 24 HOURS IN ADVANCE.
- Stunts Policy
 - A liability waiver must be signed for any member of a group attempting a stunt. (if a chapter/team is doing a stunt, the waivers from the participants must be turned in at least 24 hours prior to the event. Failure to do so will result in the chapter/team being disqualified from the event).
 - Stunts may include: standing/running tumbling and jumps
 - Free standing extended stunts are limited to stunts where both feet are in the base's hands at all times
 - All stunt release moves must land in a cradle.
 - No pyramids or tosses are allowed.
- Order of Chants TBD (will be randomized, and released to the Greek Week Delegates once finalized.

Social Media Breakdown

Each day of Greek Week will feature a unique "Add Yours" Instagram template that aligns with the day's theme.

Participants must:

- Post the "Add Yours" template to their Instagram Story.
- Tag FSL (@csuffsl) and their chapter in the story.
- Ensure their chapter's account reposts their story by 8 PM that day.

Council Marketing/Communications Chairs will track and validate participation using the official tracking spreadsheet.

Points will be awarded based on participation and adjusted for chapter/team size, a per-council average will be used.

Marketing/Communications Chairs must:

- Review all chapter account stories at 8 PM to verify valid reposts.
- Cross-check stories to ensure they are correctly tagged with FSL (@csuffsl) and individual chapters.
- Update the tracking spreadsheet with the number of valid reposts per chapter.

Daily results will be compiled into an end-of-day report.

The updated leaderboard will be shared with FSL leadership to ensure transparency and progress tracking.

Participants are encouraged to engage daily, as their posts contribute to their chapter's overall Greek Week score!

Greek Week Awards

Awards will be given to the overall winners of each category of competition, fundraising, and participation for both brackets. There will only be one grand overall points recipient.

- Overall Competition Category Winner for:
 - o Dodgeball
 - o Family Feud
 - o Mini Games
 - o Tailgate Car Competition
- Overall Fundraising Category Winner for:
 - o Coin Wars
 - Giving Fullerton Link
 - o Dine-Out Night
 - Donation Items
- Overall Participation Category for:
 - o Spirit
 - o Themes
 - Craft Center Event
 - o Alumni Night
- Grand Overall Points Winner
- Advisor Chosen Awards
 - Sportsmanship
 - o Spirit
 - Commitment to Theme

Greek Week Team

Position	Name	Contact
Associate Director Student Life & Leadership	Emily Whitt	emwhitt@fullerton.edu
FSL Coordinator Student Life & Leadership	Edwin Alarid	ealarid@fullerton.edu
FSL Engagement Support Coordinator Student Life & Leadership	Nayeli Sernas	nsernas@fullerton.edu
President Panhellenic Council	Faith Aboytes	phcpresident10@gmail.com
VP Programming Panhellenic Council	Marina Nevin	phcvpprogramming10@gmail.com
President Interfraternity Council	Adrian Barrios	csuftitans.ifcpresident@gmail.com
President Multicultural Greek Council	Mallory Martinez	mallory.am5@csu.fullerton.edu
Special Events Chair Multicultural Greek Council	Sam Alarcon	SammieRae430@csu.fullerton.edu

Greek Week Theme - Sports

Sigma Nu	skiing
Phi Kappa Tau	lacrosse
Sigma Alpha Epsilon	snowboarding
Sigma Delta Alpha	track
Alpha Psi Lambda	volleyball
Lambda Theta Phi Latin Fraternity, Inc.	wrestling
Sigma Lambda Beta	boxing
Delta Zeta	cheerleading
Sigma Theta Psi	hockey
Tau Theta Pi	golf
Gamma Phi Beta	soccer
Alpha Chi Omega	basketball
Sigma Kappa	tennis
Zeta Tau Alpha	baseball
Alpha Delta Pi	football
Phi Delta Theta	rugby